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. |PESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Schellbourne is located in the foothills of the Schell Creek
Mountain range some 40 miles north of Ely. The pilcturesque set-
ting includes a six foot wide, mountain-fed, year-round stream.
Thesite is on the edge of the Pinion-Juniper Tree belt with the
actual site growth being huge silver poplars that were planted
by the pioneers. Grass covered streets of the old town form
pleasant open areas beneath the huge trees. The site is now
the headquarters for a cattle ranch; absentee owners utilizing
the old residence of the ranch as a summer home. The old town
of Schellbourne included several stores, blacksmith shops,
livery stables, a boarding house, post office and a newspaper.
A portion of these buildings remain and are utilized by the
ranching operation. The site of Schellbourne is on a slope,

with native trees and brush in the marsh area below to the stream.

Pioneer cabins remain along the stream edge.

From the site one can look down to the broad valley floor and

toward the Egan range to the west and to the east into the half
circle of the Schell mountains. A good hard surface road leads
from U.S. Highway 93, alternate 50, three miles east to the hist
oric site of Schellbourne and on through Schellbourne Pass into
the Goshute Indian Reservation. A hard surfaced loop-back leads
one south down the east side of the Schell Range 53 miles to Con
ners Pass, (Major's Place) and thence 28 miles back north to

Ely.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

| Captain James Simpson, seeking a route across the Great Basin

The site of Schellbourne has been a Shoshone Indian village, Ov-
erland Stage and Mail stop, Pony Express Station, a location on
the route of the Overland Telegraph, base of military operationg,
mining camp, and a location on the Lincoln Transcontinental high-
way. Its strategic location with shade trees, grass and water
have made it a desirable, natural stopping place for travelers.
It has never been entirely abandoned.

shorter than the Humboldt River Trail, passed through the site
of Schellbourne in 1859. Later that year an Overland Stage and
Mail station was built there. 1In 1860, the Pony Express estab-
lished Schell Creek Station with corral and station house. The
Overland Telegraph passed over the same route in 1861.

The site briefly took: the name Fort Schellbourne in 1862 after 3
detachment of troops camped here to head off troublesome Indians
who harassed the stages and mails. Later in the decade, after
the Indians were subdued, the troops were transferred elsewhere.
The stage station declined after 1869 when the Central Pacific
Railroad was completed further north.

Gold discoveries in the surrounding hills in 1869 led to the
founding of a mining camp 2 years later. Silver ore was discov-
ered in the mountains to the east of Schellbourne in the early
1870's and the camp became a part of the Aurum Mining District-
in 1871. An active mining camp developed with a population of
over 500 persons. Freight brought from Toano on the Central

Pacific Railroad was $25 per ton. Timber, consisting of nut

pine, fir, cedar, and mohogany was found in abundance all over

he district., The town included several stores, blacksmiths

near the close of 1872,

hops, livery stables, a boarding house, post office, and a
ewspaper, the Schellbourne Prospect.

ensational ore discoveries at Cherry Creek, ten miles across
teptoe Valley, drained all but a few people from Schellbourne
Although its promising silver ledges
ad scarcely been worked, houses and machinery were hauled from
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Schellbourne to the new silver strike. Late in the 1870's, the
mines resumed production and the camp was lively; but by 1880
Scnellbourne had decllned to 50 residents.

In succeeding years, ranchers have used the stone and log
buildings in this tree-studded area as their ranch headquarters,
as do the present owners. S ' '




